
Regular Council Meeting 
June 23, 2025 

Executive Summary 

Item # Summary 
9A Description: Items for Action by Unanimous Consent 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve the consent agenda 
as presented. 

10A Description: Resolution 2025-17 

Recommended Action: Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-17 to 
update fees for various city services. 

10B Description: Resolution 2025-18 

Recommended Action: Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-18 to 
amend the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget. 

10C Description: Resolution 2025-19 

Recommended Action: Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-19 to 
exercise the city’s first right of refusal for the tax foreclosed 
property at 133 E State St. 



Item # Summary 
10D Description: Utility Easement Agreement with MEI for Hastings 

Riverwalk Lofts Service 

Recommended Action: Motion to authorize the execution of 
the temporary construction and permanent utility easement 
agreement with MEI upon final review by the city attorney. 

10E Description: Trumble’s Annual Back to School Bash 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve, under the direction 
of staff, Trumble Insurance Agency to conduct the annual Back 
to School Bash which includes use of the Pocket Park adjacent 
to the Thornapple Plaza from 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM on Saturday, 
August 2, 2025. 

10F Description: 425 and Utilities Agreement in Principle with 
Rutland Township 

Recommended Action: Motion to agree in principle to the 
general terms of a 425 agreement with Rutland Township to 
include an agreement for the Meijer property (Tax ID 13-014-
028-00) with similar revenue sharing terms as previous 425
agreements between the parties, retainage of the existing
sewer agreement, and a new water agreement to include
provision of service for Meijer only.

10G Description: Salt Storage Facility Replacement 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve the construction and 
design of a new 48’x60’ fabric structure Salt Storage Facility 
with steel frame to Clear Heights Construction in the amount of 
$275,304. 



 
Item # Summary 

10H Description: Purchase of DO Probes 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to approve the purchase and 
service work related to DO probes from Windemuller in the 
amount of $25,300 for the wastewater treatment plant. 

 



Council Agenda Page 1 of 3 June 23, 2025 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

City Council Agenda 
June 23, 2025 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM

2. Roll call

3. Pledge to the flag

√ 4. Approval of the agenda

√ 5. Approval of the minutes of the June 9, 2025, regular meeting

√ 6. Public Hearings: (None)

7. Public Comment:

8. Formal Recognitions and Presentations:

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner.

√ 9. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent: 

* A. Motion to approve the City Manager’s appointment of Dale Boulter as acting 
manager from July 6 – 13, 2025. 

√ 10. Items of Business:

* A. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-17 to update fees for various city services. 

* B. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-18 to amend the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
budget. 

* C. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-19 to exercise the city’s first right of refusal 
for the tax foreclosed property at 133 E State St. 

* D. Motion to authorize the execution of the temporary construction and permanent 
utility easement agreement with MEI as presented. 

* E. Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, Trumble Insurance Agency to 
conduct the annual Back to School Bash which includes use of the Pocket Park 
adjacent to the Thornapple Plaza from 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM on Saturday, 
August 2, 2025. 



Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 June 23, 2025 

*                   F. Motion to agree in principle to the general terms of a 425 Agreement with 
Rutland Township to include an agreement for the Meijer property (Tax ID 13-
014-028-00) with similar revenue sharing terms as previous 425 agreements 
between the parties, retainage of the existing sewer agreement, and a new 
water agreement to include provision of service for Meijer only. 

*                   G. Motion to approve the construction and design of a new 48’x60’ fabric structure 
Salt Storage Facility with steel frame to Clear Heights Construction in the amount 
of $275,304. 

*                   H. Motion to approve the purchase and service work related to DO probes from 
Windemuller in the amount of $25,300 for the wastewater treatment plant. 

11. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions: 

A. Proposed Modifications to Business Ordinances, Sections 22-1 through 22-3 
B. Draft Paid Parental Leave Policy 

 
12. City Manager Report: 

*                   A. Police Chief Boulter Monthly Report 
*                   B. City Clerk/Treasurer Perin Monthly Financial Reports 
*                   C. Community Development Director King Monthly Report 
*                   D. Streets Superintendent Neil Monthly Report 

√        13. Reports and Communications: 

*                   A. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – May 5, 2025 
*                   B. Riverside Cemetery Preservation Advisory Board Meeting Minutes – June 11, 

2025 

14. Public Comment: 

15. Mayor and Council comment: 

√        16. Adjourn 

 
 
* Items with enclosures. 
√ Motion under agenda heading requires roll call vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 June 23, 2025 

Guidelines for Public Comment 
 

Public Comment is welcomed and appreciated. Please follow these simple guidelines to ensure all have 
an opportunity to be heard. 
 
All comments and questions will be made through the chair. All comments will be made in a courteous 
and civil manner; profanity and personal attacks will not be tolerated. Please limit the length of your 
comments to 3 minutes. If you are a member of a group, please appoint a spokesperson to speak on 
behalf of the group (those speaking on behalf of a group may be provided additional time). Please 
state your name before offering comment. 



4566 

Council Minutes June 9, 2025 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2025 

1. Regular meeting called to order at 7:00 PM

2. Roll call

Councilmembers Present: Bergeron, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Resseguie, Stenzelbarton
and Tossava

City Staff and Appointees Present: Moyer-Cale, Boulter, Jordan, King and Perin

Motion by Resseguie, with support from McLean, to excuse Councilmembers Barlow and
Rocha.
All ayes. Motion carried.

3. Pledge to the flag

4. Approval of the agenda

Motion by McLean, with support from Devroy, to approve the agenda as presented.
All ayes. Motion carried.

5. Approval of the minutes of the May 27, 2025, regular meeting

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Brehm, to approve the minutes of the May
27, 2025, regular meeting.

Ayes: Bergeron, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Resseguie, Stenzelbarton and Tossava
Nays: None
Absent: Barlow and Rocha
Motion carried.

6. Public Hearings: (None)

7. Public Comment:

8. Formal Recognitions and Presentations:

A. Presentation from Dave Hatfield, Barry County Commissioner.

Comments about groundbreaking ceremony for the Commission on Aging Building
on M-79, adjacent to Thornapple Manor Harvest Pointe Assisted Living.



4567 
 

Council Minutes  June 9, 2025 

Comments on Jail Committee holding initial organizational meeting last week. Expect 
future updates from the committee. 
 
Comments on union contracts in negotiation. 

 
B. Presentation from Pattrick Jansens, from Barry County Emergency Management, on 

Rock the Country 2025. 
 

Comments on press release published last week, an estimated 50,000 attendance for 
the Rock the Country event, and security and infrastructure being in place. 
Coordination taking place with nearby county emergency managers.  
 
Hastings Airport will be the arrival point of the performers, and the Sheriff’s 
Department will assist with police escort.  
 
Requested communication with constituents about city and traffic conditions. 
 
Reminder of Community Update text number – 226787. This is a general information 
number, and not solely for Rock the Country. 
 
Comments from the City of Hastings Fire Chief Mark Jordan, outlining that the 
Hastings Fire Department is providing supportive service for the Rock the Country 
event. There will be two shifts of Department coverage each day. There will also be 
Fire personnel still active to support the city residents as needed. 
 
Discussion held. 

 
9. Items for Action by Unanimous Consent: (None) 

10. Items of Business: 

A. Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-16 to authorize the issuance of limited tax 
general obligation bond series 2025. 

 
Motion by McLean, with support from Brehm, to adopt Resolution 2025-16 to 
authorize the issuance of limited tax general obligation bond series 2025. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Ayes: Bergeron, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Resseguie, Stenzelbarton and Tossava 
Nays: None 
Absent: Barlow, Rocha 
Motion carried. 

 
B. Motion to accept the proposal from Keyes Cleaning Service for a three-year 

agreement for custodial services at City Hall for $295/week. 
 

Motion by Stenzelbarton, with support from Brehm, to accept the proposal from 
Keyes Cleaning Service for a three-year agreement for custodial services at City Hall 
for $295/week. 



4568 
 

Council Minutes  June 9, 2025 

Discussion held, about rejecting the proposal, and to accept Hallifax Custodial 
Services bid. 
  
Motion withdrawn by Stenzelbarton, with support from Brehm.  
 
Motion by Resseguie, with support from McLean, to approve Hallifax Custodial 
Services for a three-year agreement for custodial services at City Hall for 
$320.77/week. 
 
Ayes: Bergeron, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Resseguie and Tossava 
Nays: Stenzelbarton 
Absent: Barlow, Rocha 
Motion carried. 

 
11. Staff Presentations and Policy Discussions: 

A. Salt Barn Process  

Presentation from Department of Public Services Streets Superintendent Rob Neil. 
 
Discussion held. 
 
Motion by Resseguie, with support from Devroy, to proceed with budgeted project to 
replace the Salt Barn.  
 
Ayes: Bergeron, Brehm, Devroy, McLean, Resseguie, Stenzelbarton and Tossava 
Nays: None 
Absent: Barlow, Rocha 
Motion carried. 

 
12. City Manager Report: 

Placed advertisement for full-time Firefighter – new position approved for FY25-26. 
 
Invitations arriving for groundbreaking ceremony for the Hastings Riverwalk Lofts, on 
July 1, 2025.  
 
Reminder for City Council photo at 6:30 PM the next Council Meeting, June 23, 2025. 

 
A. Fire Chief Jordan Monthly Report 

 
Discussion was held. 
 

B. Library Director Edelman Monthly Report 
C. Water Utilities Superintendent Robins Monthly Report 

 
Discussion was held. 

 
13. Reports and Communications: 

A. YMCA Updates for the City of Hastings – May 21, 2025 



4569 
 

Council Minutes  June 9, 2025 

B. Hastings Public Library Board of Trustees DRAFT Minutes – June 2, 2025 
 

Motion by Brehm, with support from Resseguie, to accept and place on file items A and 
B. 
All ayes. Motion carried. 

 
14. Public Comment: 

Comments from Nancy Hallifax, offering thanks for considering her bid for custodial 
services at the City Hall. 
 
Comments from Dave Hatfield, city resident, complimenting the quality of the Downtown 
Streetscape. 

 
15. Mayor and Council comment: 

Comments from Devroy on the dedication of the Library Storywalk. 
 
Comments from Tossava on the Rock the Country event. 

 
16. Adjourn: 

Motion by McLean, with support from Stenzelbarton, to adjourn. 
All ayes. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:41 PM. 
 
 

Read and Approved: 
 
 
 
________________________     ___________________________ 
David J. Tossava, Mayor      Linda Perin, City Clerk 
 

 
 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Confirmation of Chief Dale Boulter as Acting Manager 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the city manager’s appointment of Dale Boulter as acting manager from July 

6 – July 13, 2025.  

Background Information:  

I will be on vacation and unable to reliably accept phone calls or emails during a portion of that 

time. The city charter allows for the city manager to designate someone to serve in their 

absence with the advice and consent of the council.   

Financial Implications:  

None.  

Attachments: 

None.  

9.A



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Resolution 2025-17 Fees for Various Services 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-17 to update fees for various city services.  

Background Information:  

Fees are reviewed and adjusted on an annual basis to ensure that they are appropriate for the 

cost of each service. Fees related to water/sewer or other utility-related charges are included in 

a separate fee schedule. 

Changes to the schedule include the following:  

 Reduce initial driveway permit fee to $100.

 Reduce reconstruction driveway permit fee to $80.

 Reduce pavement cut permit fee to $100.

 Various changes to cemetery fees due to contractor charges

Financial Implications:  

Fees offset the costs of providing services that are unique to individual requests and are not 

applicable to general taxpayers.  

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2025-17

10.A



Resolution 2025-17 Page 1 of 4 June 23, 2025 

City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION 2025-17 
FEES FOR VARIOUS SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hastings has determined that it is necessary to set fees charged for 
various services; now  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the fees set by this resolution shall go into effect on July 1, 2025 and 
remain in effect until changed by the Hastings City Council; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that service fees be set by the Hastings City Council as follows: 

CLERK 
Check or ACH Transaction Returned for Any Reason $50.00 
Copy Charges (Per B/W Page) $0.10/per FOIA Policy 
Downtown Handicapped Parking Permit $20.00 
Entertainment Venue, Large - Refundable Security Deposit $300.00 
Entertainment Venue, Large - Up to 4 hours (City Residents/Taxpayer) $200.00 
Entertainment Venue, Large - Up to 4 hours (Non-residents/Non-resident Taxpayer) $300.00 
Entertainment Venue, Large - Additional time (per hour) $50.00 
Entertainment Venue, Small - Refundable Security Deposit $300.00 
Entertainment Venue, Small - Up to 4 Hours (City Residents/Taxpayer) $100.00 
Entertainment Venue, Small - Up to 4 Hours (Non-residents/Non-resident Taxpayer) $150.00 
Entertainment Venue, Small - Additional Time (per hour) $25.00 
Fish Hatchery Building Rental - Refundable Key Deposit $20.00 
Fish Hatchery Building Rental - Refundable Security Deposit $300.00 
Fish Hatchery Building Rental - Up to 4 Hours (City Residents/Taxpayer) $150.00 
Fish Hatchery Building Rental - Up to 4 Hours (Non-residents) $200.00 
Fish Hatchery Building Rental - Additional Hour (per hour) $25.00 
Fish Hatchery Conference Room Rental - Up to 2 Hours $50.00 
Fish Hatchery Conference Room Rental - Additional Time (per hour) $25.00 
Going Out of Business Sale Permit $50.00 
Liquor License Application (Including Transfer) $50.00 
Map - City Map from Plotter $25.00 
Map - Original Plat $15.00 
Notary Service (Per Document) $10.00 
Online Access (via Internet) to City Charter and Updated Municipal Code $0.00 
Park Pavilion Reservation (City Residents/Taxpayer) $50.00 
Park Pavilion Reservation (Non-residents/Non-resident Taxpayer) $80.00 
Park Use Clean-up Fee - additionally (Groups of 50 or More) $80.00 
Sidewalk Cafes (per year) $50.00 
Tax Information – non-taxpayer (per parcel) $5.00/per FOIA Policy 
Tax Information – online access or for taxpayer $0.00 
Telecommunication Permit Application $500.00 
Truck Parking (E State St) fee (per month) $50.00 
Truck Parking - Electric service (per month) $35.00 
Voter Registration List (per label) per FOIA policy 
Voter Registration List (per name) per FOIA policy 
Voter Registration on Disk (+ per name) per FOIA policy 
Wedding Administrative Fee $25.00 



Resolution 2025-17 Page 2 of 4 June 23, 2025 

CODE ENFORCEMENT 
Keeping of Animals Administration Fee $25.00 
Keeping of Animals Permits $100.00 
Noxious Weed, Vegetation Control, Blight Elimination 
(Plus labor, equipment rental, supplies, and contractual service) $165.00 
Vacant/Foreclosed Property Registration $25.00 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Address Application Form (per address) $20.00 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Exemption Certificate Fee $1,200.00 
Commercial Redevelopment District Exemption Certificate Fee $1,200.00 
Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate Application Fee $1,200.00 
Export of entire Assessment/Property Tax Data File (per season) actual cost 
Export of limited Assessment/Property Tax Data File actual cost 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Application Fee $1,200.00 
Lot Combinations $35.00 
Lot Splits $100.00 
Lot Splits - per parcel created $25.00 
Neighborhood Enterprise Zone $1,200.00 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Application Fee $1,200.00 
Property Data - per parcel 
(No charge will be made during the Board of Review or to the Property Owner) actual cost 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
False Alarm Run 
(Only for mechanical alarms that have more than 3 occurrences per calendar year) $750.00 
Fire Reports $5.00 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
Basic Application Fee $380.00 
Escrow for Direct Costs (Additional Direct Cost Escrow May Be Required) $1,250.00 

PLANNING & ZONING 
Fence Permits $25.00 
Re-zoning Request $350.00 
Site Plan Review - Application $250.00 
Site Plan Review - Escrow $1,250.00 
Site Plan Review - Storm Water Review $200.00 
Site Plan Review - Administrative Fee $100.00 
Site Plan Review - Outside Sales Fee $250.00 
Special Use Permit Application $250.00 
Special Use Permit Escrow $1,250.00 
Zoning Application/Letter Form $30.00 
Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) Variance Request $350.00 

PLAT REVIEW 
Plat - Sketch $300.00 
Plat/Site Condominium - Preliminary Flat Fee (+ Per Lot) $1,500.00 
Plat/Site Condominium - Preliminary Per Lot $20.00 
Plat/Site Condominium - Final $1,500.00 
Vacating Public Right of Way Application $300.00 
Vacating Public Right of Way Escrow $1,000.00 



Resolution 2025-17 Page 3 of 4 June 23, 2025 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Bicycle License $1.00 
Breath Test (Preliminary) $5.00 
Documents (e.g., photos) on CD-ROM per FOIA policy 
Door-to-door solicitation – daily only $25.00 
DVD Video per FOIA policy 
False Alarm Responses 
(Only for mechanical alarms that have more than 3 occurrences per calendar year) $250.00 
Hawker/Peddler/Transient (Street) Vendor or Dealer (Daily) $25.00 
Hawker/Peddler/Transient (Street) Vendor or Dealer (Annually) $100.00 
Liquor License (24 Hour) $25.00 
Notary Service (Per Document) $10.00 
Second Hand & Junk Dealers’ License (Annually) $20.00 

PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Banner Installation $100.00 
Building Disconnection or Demolition Sewer Inspection Fee $150.00 
Data Log (one free per calendar year) additional $112.00 
Driveway Permits (Initial) $100.00 
Driveway Permits (Reconstruction) $80.00 
Pavement Cut Permits $100.00 

RIVERSIDE CEMETERY 
Burial Rights - Babyland Space (Bonafide legal resident of the City/Non-resident taxpayer) $150.00 
Burial Rights - Babyland Space (Non-resident) $450.00 
Burial Rights - Certificate Transfer (Plus difference between resident/taxpayer and non-resident fee) $25.00 
Burial Rights - Cremation Space (Bonafide legal resident of the City/Non-resident taxpayer) $150.00 
Burial Rights - Cremation Space (Non-resident) $450.00 
Burial Rights - Regular Lot (Bonafide legal resident of the City/Non-resident taxpayer) $300.00 
Burial Rights - Regular Lot (Non-resident) $900.00 
Grave Opening/Closing - Adult (Monday - Friday 8 AM - 5 PM) $700.00 
Grave Opening/Closing - Adult (Saturday, Holiday, Other Hours)* $850.00 
Grave Opening/Closing - Child, coffin 4 ft or less (Monday - Friday 8 AM - 5 PM) $350.00 
Grave Opening/Closing - Child, coffin 4 ft or less (Saturday, Holiday, Other Hours)* $450.00 
Grave Opening/Closing - Cremains (Monday - Friday 8 AM - 5 PM) $200.00 
Grave Opening/Closing - Cremains (Saturday, Holiday, Other Hours)* $300.00 
*Note: Holidays include New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. 
Monument Foundation (per square inch) $0.50 
Winter Burial Fee (additional) November 15 – March 31 $150.00 



Resolution 2025-17 Page 4 of 4 June 23, 2025 

HAZ-MAT COST RECOVERY FEE SCHEDULE 

PERSONNEL: Personnel cost shall be calculated as the actual labor expenses including eligible backfill and over-time rates 
in accordance with the fire department’s existing labor contracts and pay schedules. In the event the incident requires 
the Hastings Fire Department utilize fire, police and public service or other mutual aid agreements, the Hastings Fire 
Department will recover costs for other agencies. These costs will consist of the actual labor expenses including eligible 
backfill and overtime rates in accordance with the mutual aid agency’s actual labor expenses including eligible backfill 
and overtime rates. Mutual aid fire equipment will be billed at the rates contained in this fee schedule. Non-fire 
department equipment will be billed at the provider’s rates. 

VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS FROM OTHER DISTRICTs: In the event volunteer firefighters from a mutual aid agency are 
utilized, the rate shall be that agency’s predetermined rate. 

APPARATUS: Cost shall be calculated according to the following schedule; mileage and fuel rates are included in the 
hourly equipment rates. Cost for fire mutual aid agencies will also be calculated using this schedule. Additional non-fire 
department equipment shall be compensated according to that agency, department, or private contractor’s schedule of 
charges. 

Fire Engine (Pumper) $125.00 per hour 
Ladder Truck (Aerial) $225.00 per hour 

Rescue Unit $125.00 per hour 
Tankers $90.00 per hour 

Grass Trucks $55.00 per hour 
Hazardous Materials Units $75.00 per hour 

Support* Units $50.00 per hour 
*Support Units support haz-mat units, i.e., air units, mobile command posts, etc.)

MILEAGE RATES: Mileage is paid for vehicles that are not eligible for hourly rate compensation. Payment rates are “wet 
rates” - all fuel, oil, insurance, maintenance, repair, and other costs are included in the rate. 

All vehicle mileage rates shall equal the rate set by the Internal Revenue Service from time to time. 

SUPPLIES: Consumable supplies shall be billed at the actual replacement cost. 

GENERAL GUIDELINES: All costs shall be submitted utilizing provided forms.  Additional documentation shall be 
submitted if requested.  

A motion to adopt the foregoing resolution being offered by Member _____, second by Member _____: 

YEAS: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

MOTION DECLARED ______________. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a duly held and attended regular meeting the 23rd 
day of June 2025 by the City Council of the City of Hastings, by a vote of _____ member(s) voting in favor 
thereof, ______ member(s) voting against, and _____ member(s) absent. 

______________________________ 
Linda Perin, City Clerk 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Linda Perin, Finance Director/City Clerk/Treasurer 

Subject: Resolution 2025-18 Budget Amendments for FY 2024-2025 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-18 as presented to amend the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget. 

Background Information: 

Budget amendments are appropriate at the end of the year to ensure the final budget document 
reflects the decisions and will of City Council. Budget amendments are necessary when fund 
revenue is expected to be less than anticipated or when fund/activity center expenses are 
expected to be greater than the original budget. Budget amendments are not necessary when 
revenue is greater, or expenses are less than estimated in the original budget.  The recommended 
budget adjustments in attachments A and B represent what is required to be legally compliant 
and do not result in a larger budget than originally approved.  

General Fund (Attachment A – General Fund Budget Amendments) 

The FY 2024-2025 Adopted General Fund Revenue budget totaled $7,452,185. Based on an 
analysis of year-to-date General Fund Revenue, amendments totaling -$400,800 are 
recommended, reducing the total General Fund Revenue appropriation to $7,051,385. The 
revenue line-item Private Contributions & Donations is reduced due to the committee’s decision 
to change to a community fundraising effort for the TangleTown Renovation Project.  

The FY 2024-2025 Adopted General Fund Expenditure and Transfers Out budget totaled 
$8,021,185. Based on a year-to-date analysis, amendments totaling -$400,800 are 
recommended, reducing the total General Fund Expenditure and Transfers Out appropriation to 
$7,620,385. The most significant adjustments are: 

10.B



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

• Other General Government budget is amended by $327,000. This increase is due to a 
FY23-24 additional MERS contribution paid in FY24-25.  

• The Parks and Recreation budget is amended by -$833,649. This reduction is due to the 
timing of the TangleTown and Fish Hatchery Park Restroom projects to be completed in 
FY25-26.  

• The combined total of all other expenditure budget amendments is $105,849. 

Adjustments by department can be found on Attachment A. 

 

Other Funds (Attachment B – Other City Governmental Fund Budget Amendments) 

The City’s Other Governmental Funds also require amendments based on a year-to-date analysis. 
In the Major Streets, Local Streets, Cemetery, Drug Enforcement, Water & Sewer, and Equipment 
Revolving Funds, revenue amendments to account for less revenue received than the adopted 
budgets are being proposed. These six funds do not require expenditure amendments.   

Expenditure amendments totaling $1,071,460 are required in the following funds: 

• Brownfield Redevelopment Fund $23,000 
• Downtown Development Authority Fund $998,460 
• Library Fund $50,000 

Please see Attachment B for details on these increases. 

 

Financial Implications:  

Budget amendments are a required procedure. These amendments reflect what is necessary to 
be compliant with state requirements and should not be considered an estimate of ending fund 
balance.  

 

Attachments: 

• Resolution 2025-18 and attachments 



Resolution 2025-18 Page 1 of 1 June 23, 2025 

City Of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

__________________________          ____  
 

RESOLUTION 2025-18 
 

TO AMEND THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hastings has established the City’s budget for the fiscal year 
commencing July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that said budget be amended based on the availability 
of new information; and  
 
WHEREAS, this Council is authorized by the City Charter and State statute to amend the budget 
throughout the fiscal year as it determines necessary; now 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hastings amends the budget for 
the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025, incorporating amendments as 
detailed in Attachment A – General Fund Budget Amendments and Attachment B – Other City 
Governmental Funds.  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the funds appropriated shall be drawn from the treasury of the City 
for the purposes approved pursuant to the authority granted by the Hastings City Charter. 
 
A motion to adopt the foregoing resolution being offered by Member ___, with support by Member ___: 
 
YEAS:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:   
 
MOTION DECLARED __________. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a duly held and attended regular meeting 
the 23rd day of June, 2025, by the City Council of the City of Hastings, by a vote of ___ (_) members 
voting in favor thereof, ___ (_) member voting against, and ___ (_) member(s) absent. 
 
 
           
                                                           Linda Perin 
      City Clerk 



ATTACHMENT A
GENERAL FUND BUDGET AMENDMENTS

General Fund Revenue / Departments
 FY 2025 Adopted 

Budget 
 FY 2025 Budget 

Amendments 

 FY 2025 FINAL 
Amended 

Budget  Notes 

Revenue 
Private Contributions & Donations 410,800                  (400,800)             10,000                  Changed to community fundraising effort
All Other Revenue 7,041,385              -                               7,041,385           

Total, General Fund Revenue 7,452,185$           (400,800)$          7,051,385$        

Expenditures
General Fund Departments

City Council 82,326$                  $0 82,326$                
Mayor 14,811                     1,189 16,000                  Not budgeted for printer lease
City Manager's Office 192,810                  2,500 195,310                Additional Actual Conferences expense
Finance Department 396,945                  0 396,945                
City Clerk 117,396                  4,300 121,696                Significant Actual Overtime due to 9 days Early Voting
Information Technology 244,000                  0 244,000                
Board of Review 2,512                        460                         2,972                     Actual Stipends processed incorrectly
Treasurer 83,928                     4,000 87,928                  Increased Maintenance Agreement costs
Assessor 171,282                  0 171,282                
Elections 56,368                     0 56,368                  
City Hall and Grounds 158,950                  0 158,950                
Legal and Audit 70,000                     0 70,000                  
Other General Government 588,415                  327,000               915,415                FY23-24 additional MERS contribution processed in FY-24-25
Police Department 2,099,689              0 2,099,689           
Code Compliance 50,962                     0 50,962                  
Fire Department 524,545                  0 524,545                
Inspections 100,000                  80,000 180,000                Higher contracted services for Building Permits
Public Services Administration 159,240                  0 159,240                
Parking Downtown Non-SAD 23,000                     0 23,000                  
Parking Downtown SAD 267,500                  0 267,500                
Street Lighting 99,500                     10,400 109,900                Actual Electric costs exceed budget
Community Services 300,355                  0 300,355                
Planning and Zoning 18,685                     0 18,685                  
Joint Planning & Zoning 400                            0 400                         

Community Development 143,143                  3,000 146,143                
 Actual Legal Services exceed budget due to increased economic development 
activity 

Community Development Grant Projects 65,100                     0 65,100                  
Cable Access 13,776                     0 13,776                  
Parks and Recreation 1,344,325              (833,649)             510,676                Amend Bldgs & Bldg Imp-Depreciable due to TangleTown & FHP
Arts and Cultural Services 81,526                     0 81,526                  
Transfers Out / Other 549,696                  0 549,696                

Total General Fund Departments 8,021,185              (400,800)              7,620,385           

Addition to / (Use of) Fund Balance (569,000)                 (569,000)              

Resolution 2025-18
June 23, 2025



ATTACHMENT B
OTHER CITY GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Revenue / 
Expenditure Fund Name

FY 2025 Adopted 
Budget

FY 2025 Budget 
Amendments

FY 2025 FINAL 
Amended 

Budget Notes

Revenue Major Streets - Fund 202 $1,460,556 ($405,000) $1,055,556 Small Urban Grant awarded directly through MDOT

Revenue Local Streets - Fund 203 $673,772 ($2,000) $671,772
Based on YTD actuals, Interest Earned on Deposits & Investments over-
estimated

Revenue Cemetery - Fund 209 $273,779 ($37,000) $236,779
Supplemental funds for Memorial Phase I not requested from BCF 
Endowment Fund to cover final construction costs

Expenditure
Brownfield Redevelopment - Fund 
243 $45,000 $23,000 $68,000

NEZ Reimbursement Budget & Actual Expense not recorded in prior 
year; FY24 & FY25 reimbursements paid this year

Expenditure
Downtown Development Authority 
- Fund 248 $883,391 $998,460 $1,881,851

Numerous items budgeted in FY24 but paid in FY25, addition of 
Christmas décor expense
 

Revenue Drug Enforcement - Fund 265 $2,500 ($2,500) $0 Federal Grant-Public Safety not offered this year

Expenditure Library - Fund 271 $656,799 $50,000 $706,799

Significant increase in Building Repair & Maintenance costs due to 
restroom vandalism 
(offset by increased revenue from insurance claim)

Revenue Water & Sewer - Fund 592 $4,900,690 ($90,000) $4,810,690 Budgeted State Grant-Lead Service Line Program ended last year

Revenue 
Equipment Revolving Fund - Fund 
661 $908,000 ($33,000) $875,000

Less revenue from sale of assets than budgeted, less fuel sale revenue 
than budgeted

Resolution 2025-18
June 23, 2025



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: First Right of Refusal – Foreclosure of 133 E State St 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Approve the Resolution to exercise the city’s first right of refusal for the tax foreclosed property 
at 133 E State St.  

Background Information: 

133 E State Street is in tax foreclosure. The city has spent approximately $14,888 mitigating 
code and safety issues on this property. The unpaid taxes and interest is $3,275.94.  

Under state law, the local unit using Right of First Refusal must pay the greater of minimum bid 
or market value (twice the SEV) only if, “1 or more claimants have filed a claim for remaining 
proceeds from the foreclosed property.” If no claimant has filed, the local unit can use its Right 
of First Refusal at the minimum bid.  Staff is recommending the city use its right of first refusal 
to mitigate some of its losses on the property and to use the property for economic 
development purposes.  

The tax foreclosure process is complex, and staff is working to navigate the process. The 
resolution and supporting documents are still being prepared but will be provided to the city 
council at the earliest opportunity.  

Financial Implications: 

After acquiring this property, the DDA could be primarily responsible for planning the next 
steps or this could be managed by staff.  

Attachments: To be provided in the second draft of this memo. 

10.C



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Utility Easement Agreement with MEI for Hastings Riverwalk Lofts Service 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to authorize the execution of the temporary construction and permanent utility 
easement agreement with MEI upon final review by the city attorney.   

Background Information: 

We have a Metro Act Agreement with MEI for the use of the public rights-of-way for 
telecommunications lines. To provide service to the new Riverwalk Lofts on Mill Street, they 
would like to extend service from the existing line on Boltwood across the trail through the 
riverside park and under the walking bridge to the site. Since this is outside the right-of-way, a 
separate easement agreement for the line must be signed.  

Financial Implications:  

None. MEI will pay for all installation and restoration necessary. 

Attachments: 

• Easement Agreement document

10.D





















Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Mayor Tossava and City Council 

From: Dan King 

Subject: Trumble’s Annual Back to School Bash Request 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to approve, under the direction of staff, Trumble Insurance Agency to conduct the 
annual Back to School Bash which includes use of the Pocket Park adjacent to the Thornapple 
Plaza from 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM on Saturday August 2, 2025. 

Background Information: 

Staff have approved the use of Thornapple Plaza for the Trumble Insurance Agency to conduct 
the second annual Back to School Bash from 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM on Saturday, August 2, 2025. 
The event will also include the use of the Pocket Park adjacent to the Thornapple Plaza for a 
Sensory Area. Section 58-38 (a) of the Municipal Code requires Council permission to conduct 
such an activity in a park. 

Staff have reviewed the request and have no concerns. 

Financial Implications:  

There are no financial implications for the City. 

Attachments: 

• Special Event Application

10.E















Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: 425 and Utilities Agreement in Principle with Rutland Township 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to agree in principle to the general terms of a 425 agreement with Rutland Township to 
include an agreement for the Meijer property (Tax ID 13-014-028-00) with similar revenue 
sharing terms as previous 425 agreements between the parties, retainage of the existing sewer 
agreement, and a new water agreement to include provision of service for Meijer only.  

Background Information: 

Representatives from the City, Rutland Township, and Barry County met earlier this week to 
further discuss the Meijer development in light of recent board actions and correspondence. 

Although there are numerous smaller items to be resolved, if the above points can be agreed 
upon by each party, we are confident that the remaining items can be worked out. Once 
approved in principle, the city and township attorneys will work on the agreement documents. 
The proper steps will then be taken to initiate the 425 agreement, as well as auxiliary 
agreements that are necessary.  

Financial Implications:  

Varied – some costs are still unknown. 

Attachments: None. 

10.F



Regular Council 

Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Honorable Mayor Dave Tossava, Sara Moyer-Cale, City council 

From: Robert V. Neil 

Subject: Salt Storage Facility Replacement 

Meeting Date: July 23, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to approve the construction and design of a new 48'x60' fabric structure Salt Storage 

Facility with steel frame to Clear Heights Construction in the amount of $275,304. 

Background Information: 

The existing salt storage building is in desperate need of replacement; at the current time the 

building is estimated to be approx. 55+ years old. The current building is in an unrepairable state 

with foundation and roof settling and deterioration. A new Salt Storage building will allow the 

City of Hastings to store a larger capacity of Road Salt for winter application. currently about 

450-500 tons. The new building is approx. 700-800 tons.

This building could also be used to protect some extra equipment during the summer months. 

Financial Implications: 

The salt storage building is included in the approved 2025/2026 Fiscal year in the amount of 

$275,000.00. There would be a $304.00 increase above the approved budgeted amount. 

Attachments: 

• Clear Heights Construction Quote

• Photos of the existing Salt Storage facility

Photos of Concept building

10.G













Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Purchase of DO Probe from Windemuller in the amount of $25,300 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to approve the purchase and service work related to DO probes from Windemuller in 
the amount of $25,300 for the wastewater treatment plant.  

Background Information: 

There are currently two luminescent dissolved oxygen (LDO) probes for the six aeration basins 
that work in conjunction with the SCADA. Four of the aeration basins are currently in use, soon 
to be reduced to three. The installation of an additional probe will provide improved process 
control.   

It is cumbersome to determine the overall viability and control of secondary treatment by 
relying on only two of the mixed liquor aeration basins. If one is out of service for any length 
time, there is only one left to continuously monitor the dissolved oxygen levels which is critical 
to the treatment process. 

Our contracted operator Ford Hamman will be present to answer questions from the Council. 

Financial Implications:  

$40,000 has been budgeted for this expense in the current fiscal year. 

Attachments: 

• Recommendation letter from Operator Ford Hamman
• Windemuller Quote

10.H





 

 

BIG RAPIDS  CHARLEVOIX    GRAND RAPIDS   KALAMAZOO    MIDLAND    TRAVERSE CITY    WHITEHALL 

May 21, 2025 
 
Ford Hamman 
825 West Apple Street,  
Hastings MI 49058 
 
Dear Ford, 
  
 SUBJECT: Additional DO Probe Installation   
 PROPOSAL #: EDP25-052 
 
This proposal is for the following equipment and services: 
 
Base work:       

 Install PVC coated rigid conduit between probe locations, junction box and main DO 
control unit 

 Provide and install One (1) DO sensor remote unit with sunshield. Remote unit can 
accept two DO probes. 

 Provide and install One (1) 90-foot interconnection cable for between DO remote unit 
and main DO controller 

 Provide Two (2) Probe Sensor Cables 
 Provide Two (2) DO Probes 
 Provide Two (2) Chain Style Probe Holders 
 Provide Two (2) Swing Mount Assembly 
 Provide Two (2) Rail Mounting Stands 
 Install DO probe and assembly for basin 6 
 Deliver spare DO probe and all accessories for Basin 5 to customer 
 Connect spare PLC signal wire that is already in place between main DO control unit 

and PLC control panel 
 PLC program modifications to accept Basin 6 DO signal 
 Set up and verify PO probe functionality for basin 6 

 
Total Cost for the above described work is: $23,800.00 
 
 

The following option is to prep basin 5 for DO probe installation. The following equipment and 
services:       

 Provide and install new PLC signal cable from existing DO control unit back to PLC 
control panel for basin 5 DO signal 

 Install DO mount assembly for basin 5 
 PLC program modifications to accept Basin 5 DO signal 
 Set up and verify DO probe functionality for basin 5 

 
Total Cost for Basin 5 connect to PLC option: $1,500.00 



 

 

BIG RAPIDS  CHARLEVOIX    GRAND RAPIDS   KALAMAZOO    MIDLAND    TRAVERSE CITY    WHITEHALL 

 
Total cost for base work and the basin 5 option is $25,300.00.  

 

Our proposal is based on the following: 

1) Adding basin 5 and/or basin 6 DO signals to the SCADA system is not included. 
2) For work to be performed on existing customer programs, source codes, documentation, 

and any other information as required to gain access to the programs are to be provided 
to Windemuller. All software licenses must be current unless otherwise noted. 

3) For work to be performed using existing equipment, the equipment must be in good 
working order and suitable for the intended use. 

4) Windemuller will repair or replace equipment supplied by us found to be defective for 
one (1) year after commissioning. Warranty work will be performed as soon as possible 
after notification. If it is determined that warranty issues are not the responsibility of 
Windemuller, all time and material may be billed at our current rates. 

5) Professional Courtesy and Non-Solicitation Agreement: In exchange for the above 
concessions both parties, i.e. Windemuller and your company agree to not solicit each 
other’s employees for a period of 2 years after the last date of services performed. In 
addition, any proprietary information or programs from both parties will not be forwarded 
or distributed to others. 

6) This proposal is valid for 20 days. 
 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal for your requirements. If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact us. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Erik Penninga 
 
Erik Penninga 
Automation Estimator 
(616) 877.8770 
 
 

Accepted By________________________ 

Printed Name_______________________ 

Purchase Order_____________________ 

Date______________________________ 



 

 
 

To: Hastings Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

ATTN: Ford Hamman 

From: Zane Belson 

Site: Hastings Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Job Quote: Q25118 

Date:   5/30/25 

 

Bid Breakdown: 

 Material and labor to install (2) provided tank monitoring control units.   

(1) control unit to be installed at each of basins #5 and #6.  Install stainless steel Unistrut, as 

needed, for unit mounting brackets and to support conduit runs.  Core concrete walls as needed, 

and extend PVC coated rigid conduit with multi-conductor control cable from unit at each basin, 

back to controller at basin #4.  Install chase between existing stainless-steel enclosures.  Utilize 

existing 2’’ conduit from stainless enclosures to exterior of pump house control room.  Install 

conduit body, reduce to ¾” conduit, and extend to PLC enclosure on South wall of building 

interior.  Install cable from PLC enclosure to basin #4 controller.  Terminate all low voltage cables 

at each basin and at PLC per customer’s Control Engineer’s instructions. 

 

 

*Price expires 15 days from date of this quote. 

 

Total Bid: $ 52,300.00 

Thank You for the opportunity to quote this project. 

 

  Zane Belson 

Project Estimator 

Hickey Electric Inc. 

 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Proposed Modifications to Business Ordinances, Sections 22-1 through 22-3. 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

None at this time, your feedback is requested and encouraged. 

Background Information: 

Staff has reviewed Sections 22-1, 22-2, and 22-3 of the municipal code regarding loading and 
unloading, sidewalk displays, and sidewalk café and dining platforms and is presenting 
suggested modifications to the text.  

A part of having an interesting and attractive downtown is to increase activity and display the 
uniqueness of the area. This is easily done by individual businesses displaying their wares, 
flowerpots, dog drinking bowls, sidewalk signs, etc, outside the doors of their business. 
However, our ordinance currently prohibits much of this activity without council action. Staff 
suggests an ordinance that encourages displays outside of businesses, provided they are safe, 
do not obstruct pedestrian walkways, and are only displayed during business operating hours. 
Many of our downtown businesses are already doing this.  

Another issue we wanted to address is the matter of platform dining areas. Now that there are 
more shared public dining areas, staff does not feel that platform dining is necessary. It is also 
costly to construct, which makes it a less appealing option for businesses.  

Financial Implications: 

None.  

11.A



 
 

Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

Attachments: 

• Notated version of relevant ordinance sections 



Sec 22-1 Loading Or Unloading Merchandise 

1. Generally. Where alleys or rear entrances exist, a person engaged in business or the 
sale of goods, wares or merchandise shall at all times use such alleys or rear 
entrances to his place of business for the loading or unloading of merchandise.  

2. Use of sidewalk. No person engaged in the sale of merchandise shall use any part of 
the public sidewalk in front of his place of business for the unloading of goods or 
merchandise, except and only as such goods, wares and merchandise shall be 
promptly removed from the sidewalk immediately after the deposit of the same on 
the sidewalk. In case of emergency, the mayor or the council the City Manager or 
their designee may for some cause shown, issue a permit or order a longer time to 
remove the goods, wares or merchandise.  

3. Municipal civil infraction. A person who violates any provision of this section is 
responsible for a municipal civil infraction, subject to payment of a civil fine as set 
forth in section 52-38. Repeat oƯenses under this article shall be subject to 
increased fines as set forth in section 52-38.  

Sec 22-2 Sidewalk Displays 

1. Display of wares or merchandise. No person doing business in the city shall oƯer for 
sale or display his goods, wares or merchandise, including vegetables, at his place 
of business, by placing his goods, wares or merchandise upon the sidewalk in front 
of his place of business. Temporary movable sales racks and movable sidewalk 
furniture (i.e., chairs and tables where patrons can sit, but where food or drink 
service is not provided) are permitted on the public sidewalk provided that: 

1. Such items are associated with a permanent business operating in a building 
immediately adjacent to the sidewalk where the items are placed; 

2. Such items are placed as close to the building as is reasonably possible; 

3. A minimum of five feet of unobstructed, pedestrian access along the 
sidewalk is maintained;  

4. Sales racks do not exceed one hundred fifty (150) square feet or twenty (20) 
linear feet of frontage and are only present in the right-of-way during 
business operating hours. These limitations do not apply during community 
events authorized by the City; and 

1.5. Items are in good condition and fit the general aesthetic and character 
of other elements nearby.  

Formatted



2. Wares or merchandise in glass cases. This section shall include all goods, 
wares and merchandise that may be enclosed in glass cases, including portable 
show cases, racks or other movable devices for the show or display of goods and 
merchandise, if placed upon the sidewalk in front of a place of business.  

3.2. Municipal civil infraction. A person who violates any provision of this section 
is responsible for a municipal civil infraction, subject to payment of a civil fine as set 
forth in section 52-38. Repeat oƯenses under this article shall be subject to 
increased fines as set forth in section 52-38.  

Sec 22-3 Sidewalk Cafe And Dining Platform Permits 

1. Sidewalk cafes. As used in this section, a sidewalk cafe shall be any portion of the 
public right-of-way that is permitted to be used by a licensed food service 
establishment for service of food and beverages in accordance with the provisions 
of this section.  

2. Dining platform. As used in this section, a dining platform shall be an elevated 
platform permitted in any portion of the public right-of-way that is permitted to be 
used by a licensed food service establishment for service of food and beverages in 
accordance with the provisions of this section.  

3.2. Permit conditions. The city clerk may issue to an adjacent food service 
establishment a revocable sidewalk cafe or dining platform permit for not more than 
one calendar year, to occupy a portion of adjacent city right-of-way in the area 
bounded by Broadway Avenue, the Thornapple River, Boltwood Street and Green 
Street to place tables and chairs for selling and consuming food and beverages 
under the following terms and conditions:  

1. Prohibitions. The occupancy must not:  

1. Interfere with the use of the right-of-way for pedestrian or vehicular 
travel.  

2. Unreasonably interfere with the view, access to, or use of property 
adjacent to said street.  

3. Reduce the pedestrian travel area of any sidewalk to less than six feet 
in width. The pedestrian travel area shall not include trees, bushes, 
walls, parking meters, fire hydrants, tree grates, or any other fixtures 
permanently located in the right-of-way.  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering



4. Reduce on-street parking area within the downtown by more than two 
parking spaces per food service establishment on South Church 
Street, West State Street and East State Street or by more than one 
space per food service establishment on any other street.  

5.4. Cause damage to the street or sidewalk or to trees, benches, 
landscaping, or other objects lawfully located in the right-of-way.  

6.5. Cause violation of any state or local laws.  

7.6. Be principally used for oƯ-premises advertising.  

8.7. Conceal or detract from the appearance of landscaping 
features in or adjacent to the street.  

9.8. Be in or adjacent to property zoned exclusively for residential 
purposes.  

10.9. Be attached to or reduce the eƯectiveness of or access to any 
utility, sign, or other traƯic control device.  

11.10. Cause increased risk of theft or vandalism.  

12.11. Locate any cooking apparatus in any portion of the public right-
of-way.  

13.12. Violate regulations adopted by the city manager pursuant to 
this Code.  

2. Requirements. 

1. Any improvements to be installed in the public right-of-way by a 
sidewalk cafe or dining platform shall be temporary in nature and be 
approved by the director of public services of the city.  the city 
manager or their designee. The improvements shall be removed at the 
end of each season or within ten days upon notice by the city 
requiring removal, or upon termination of the permit. All costs and 
expenses of the improvements, removal of improvements, and 
restoration of the right-of-way shall be borne by the 
applicant/occupant.  

2. All improvements installed pursuant to a sidewalk cafe permit or 
dining platform shall be in compliance with all building and fire code 
requirements prohibiting the obstruction of exits.  



3. All improvements installed pursuant to a sidewalk cafe or dining 
platform permit shall be in compliance with all code requirements 
established by the liquor control commission as it relates to serving of 
alcohol.  

4. All lighting in outdoor service areas shall be shielded downward and 
away from adjacent properties. No loudspeakers, music, or public 
address systems or other sound amplification equipment shall be 
permitted that will generate noise that can be heard from adjacent 
properties.  

5. All sidewalk cafe areas in which alcohol is to be served and all dining 
platforms shall be surrounded by an approved fence at least 3 feet in 
height.must comply with all Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
requirements.  

3. Notice. Notice to the adjacent property owners or occupants on both sides 
of the applicant's property shall be required before issuing a permit to 
occupy any right-of-way area between the street edge of the vehicle use area 
of the right-of-way and the right-of-way property line. Said notice should 
include an enumeration of the conditions or rights provided under this 
section.  

4. Fee. Prior to the issuance of a permit, a fee in the amount established by 
resolution of the city council shall be paid to the city clerk.  

5. Insurance. The permittee shall show proof of and maintain comprehensive 
general liability insurance and worker's compensation and employer's 
liability insurance and have the city as an additional named insured. The 
amount of such insurance shall be determined by the city council.  

6. Food service establishment. Food service establishment shall be defined in 
accordance with its meaning in the Public Health Code. (MCLA 333.12901)  

7. Regulations. The city manager may adopt an executive order controlling the 
occupancy pursuant to a sidewalk cafe or dining platform permit.  

4.3. Duration. Permits shall be for the period of May 1 to November 1 for the year 
in which granted they are granted, and hours of operations shall be limited to 
between 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m.   

5. Display. A permit shall only be valid if displayed in a manner visible to the public.  

Commented [SM1]: StaƯ questions if this is necessary 
or helpful. 

Commented [SM2]: Is there interest in expanding this 
so that it starts as early as April 1?  



6.4. Hold harmless. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the licensee agrees to 
defend, pay in behalf of, and hold harmless the city, its elected and appointed 
oƯicials, employees and volunteers, and others working in behalf of the city against 
any and all claims, demands, suits, losses, including all costs connected therewith, 
for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the 
city, its elected and appointed oƯicials, employees, volunteers or others working on 
behalf of the city, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death, 
and/or property damage, including loss of use therefore which arises out of or is in 
any way connected or associated with this permit.  

7.5. Permit revocation. Any permit may be revoked by the city manager upon a 
finding that the occupancy does not meet the standards of this Code, any other 
provisions of this Code, or other applicable law or regulation, or that the right-of-
way is needed for other street or utility purposes. Upon such revocation, the fee paid 
for any period after termination of the street occupancy shall be refunded.  

8.6. Appeal. Persons who are refused a permit or have had their permit revoked 
may request in writing a hearing on that determination before the city manager. The 
decision of the manager may be appealed to the city council. Requests for a hearing 
or an appeal must be made within five days of the questioned decision.permit 
revocation.   

9.7. Appearance tickets. The police chief and the appointed oƯicers of the police 
department or such other oƯicials as are designated by the city manager, are hereby 
authorized to issue and serve appearance tickets with respect to a violation of this 
chapter. Appearance tickets shall be in such form as determined by the city attorney 
and shall be in conformity with all statutory requirements.  

 



Regular Council 
Agenda Item Memorandum 

To: Hastings City Council 

From: Sarah Moyer-Cale, City Manager 

Subject: Draft Paid Parental Leave Policy 

Meeting Date: June 23, 2025 

Recommended Action:  

None at this time, for review only. 

Background Information: 

The City Council previously requested a draft paid parental leave policy to consider. A first draft 
is enclosed for your review and discussion.  

Financial Implications: 

The draft allows for up to four weeks of paid time off for birth or adoption. This would be a new 
benefit that is unbudgeted.  

Attachments: 

• Draft Paid Parental Leave Policy

11.B



Paid Parental Leave Policy  
Administrative Policy and Procedure Order 

 

SUBJECT:  Paid Parental Leave Policy 

PURPOSE: The purpose of the Paid Parental Leave Policy is to afford eligible, full-
time employees with maternal care and parental bonding time with 
their newly born or adopted child without loss of wages for the 
defined leave term. The Paid Parental Leave Policy is intended as a 
supplement to and be coordinated under the City’s existing FMLA 
policy, as amended.  

STATEMENT OF POLICY: 

I. ELIGIBILITY 

Permanent, full-time employees of the City for at least twelve (12) months and 
who work thirty-five or more hours per week are eligible for Paid Parental Leave  
Benefits in accordance with this policy.  
 
Paid Parental Leave Benefits will only be available once in a twelve-month period 
calculated from the exact date of birth of an eligible City employee’s child or 
from the exact date on which physical custody of a minor child is transferred to 
an eligible City employee pursuant to an adoption agreement.  

If an eligible City employee gives birth to multiple children in a single pregnancy 
or simultaneously adopts multiple children, such events will be considered a 
single qualifying event entitling the City employee to Parental Leave Benefits.  

Serving as a surrogate mother, sperm donor, or foster parent does not qualify for 
Paid Parental Leave Benefits. A voluntary or involuntary loss of custody of a 
newborn will terminate the Parental Leave Benefits leave term as of the date 
physical custody is lost. 

To be eligible, a city employee must comply with all requirements of this Policy. 

 

II. REQUIREMENTS 



An eligible City employee shall provide at least thirty days’ written notice to 
his/her department director and to the City Manager.  This notice period may be 
shortened by the City Manager based on extenuating circumstances beyond the 
city employee’s control.   

All Parental Leave Benefits notices will be reviewed for potential Family and 
Medical Leave Policy guidelines for the employees of the City of Hastings. 

An eligible City employee shall provide proof of the exact date of birth or exact 
date of taking physical custody of a minor child pursuant to an adoption 
agreement within 15 calendar days after the Effective Date as provided below. 

III. EFFECTIVE DATE 

Eligibility for Parental Leave Benefits shall begin on the exact date of birth of an 
eligible City employee’s child or on the exact date on which physical custody of a 
minor child is transferred to the City employee through an adoption agreement. 

IV. PARENTAL LEAVE BENEFITS 
 
Paid Parental Leave Benefits are available to eligible City employees who are 
either the birthing mother, non-birthing parent, or adoptive parent of a child. 
Eligible employees shall be entitled to four (4) weeks of Paid Parental Leave 
starting from the Effective Date.  
 

 
Rules for Administering Parental Leave Benefits 

 
A. The Parental Leave Benefits leave term will run concurrent with FMLA leave 
terms. After expiration of the applicable Parental Leave Benefits leave term, an 
eligible City employee is eligible for any remaining benefits provided for under 
FMLA or Short-Term Disability; provided, the eligible City employee satisfies all 
applicable requirements. Under no circumstances shall an eligible City 
employee utilize the Parental Leave Benefit leave term to extend the terms of 
FMLA or Short-Term Disability for the same qualifying birth or adoption.  
 
B. Parental Leave Benefits must be utilized by an eligible City employee 
commencing immediately following the Effective Date and cannot be used 
intermittently.  
 



C. The Parental Leave Benefits will be calculated using the eligible City 
employee’s base salary and normal work week. 
 
D. Employees on Parental Leave Benefits leave are not eligible for overtime pay 
because they are not actually working, except as may otherwise be provided in 
the respective collective bargaining agreements.  
 
E. Should a paid holiday fall within the Parental Leave Benefits leave term, the 
holiday will not be paid to the eligible City employee in lieu of the Parental Leave 
Benefits. An eligible City employee shall not be able to utilize other accrued 
leave time to extend the leave term for Parental Leave Benefits.   
 
F. Eligible City employees who elect to work alternative employment during the 
leave term are ineligible for Parental Leave Benefits.  
 
G. During the Parental Leave Benefits leave term, an eligible City employee is 
also eligible to accrue seniority and all other forms of leave time in accordance 
with the applicable collective bargaining agreement and personnel policy. 
Parental Leave Benefits shall not result in the loss of any employment benefit 
provided by collective bargaining agreement, provided the eligible City employee 
is meeting his or her obligations to qualify therefore.  
 
H. A City employee is not eligible for unemployment benefits during the Parental 
Leave Benefits leave term because there is no wage loss and employment is 
readily available but for the employee’s voluntary choice to receive Parental 
Leave Benefits.  
 
The City Manager reserves the right to amend or suspend this policy, or any 
portion thereof, at any time. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 
APPROVAL: 



Dale Boulter     Julissa Kelly   
Chief of Police    Deputy Chief 

Hastings Police Department Council report for the month of May 2025 

Staffing 

Employed Recruit Devon Chojnacki has completed his training of the basic police academy and has 
successfully passed the state exam. Ofc. Chojnacki has reported for duty and was sworn in as a police 
officer on June 6th and been assigned to training officer Sgt. Pickett for the first phase of his training. Ofc. 
Chojnacki will experience several different exposures to different shifts and training officers throughout 
the next few months.  

As reported last month, we have decided on one individual to sponsor for the upcoming academy. 
Brennan Sensiba has been chosen to become our next Employed Recruit for the upcoming academy. 
Brennan is the son of former Officer Josh Sensiba, so he is not a stranger to the city or our police 
department.  

Ofc. Wesseling returned to work and has completed the required refresh training. Ofc. Wesseling will be 
returning to her normal day shift position prior to my next report.  

STATS 

The past month, officers responded to 507 calls for service, with a total of 22 arrests, 16 traffic 
accidents, and 2 non-traffic accidents. Officers issued a total of 50 citations, 23 being moving violations, 
27 being non-moving violations. Officers conducted a total of 150 traffic stops for the month of May. 

RESERVE OFFICERS 

The Reserve Department contributed 59 hours for the month of May. Thank you to the Reserve 
Department Kyle Herring and Steve Wales for their help and participation with the Hazardous 
Household Waste Take Back.  

Hastings City Police 
201 E. State St.  

Hastings, MI 49058 
(269) 948-4800 Dispatch

(269) 945-5744 Office
(269) 945-4358 Fax

12.A



 

TRAINING: 

Training continues to be a top priority for our department. Officers have all completed the annual 
decision making/stress shoot.  

Three officers attended Beyond the Basics of FTO (Field Training Officer) 

SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS 

I wanted to take this opportunity to thank each of our school crossing guards. Sandy Rogers, Rose 
Hendershot, Criag Wolf, Leo Parker, and Pam Parker have been dedicated to the safety of our children 
morning and afternoon. Thank you to each one of you for continuing to keep our school crossing safe. 
We appreciate the dedication each one of you has to your position. Enjoy your time off and we will see 
you soon! 

We are also accepting applications for crossing guards as one position is currently open. The position 
open is Michigan Ave at Grant St. Contact the Hastings Police Department for details and application. 

UPCOMING EVENTS 

Barry County First Responders Day Out July 12th  

Code Compliance report 

Report attached  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dale Boulter 

Chief of Police 

 









City of Hastings 
Code Compliance Officer 
May 2025 Activity Report 

 
 

  

QUANTITY COMPLAINT   

3 Animal related (90-835)   

37 Grass and weeds more than 8” tall (38-105)   

1 Compostable yard debris and refuse in right-of-way, snow 
piles (74-39, 74-71, 74-72) 

  

0 Garbage Code Violations (66-88/89/90/93/94)   

16 Vehicles parked on unapproved surfaces – residential zones (90-929)   

10 Unlicensed/Inoperable vehicles, parts, or tire storage (38-76, 77 ,78)   

9 Refuse and debris in unscreened area of yard (90-881, 90-882)   

1 Rental Unit complaints   

13 Signage issues/ Signs in Right-Of-Way   

0 Sign Permits Issued   

1 Fencing Issues   

4 Fence Permits Issued   

10 Structure & Building Maintenance Issues   

0 Recreational Vehicle Issues   

1 Abandoned refrigerator w/door attached (54-61)   

2 Sidewalk parking/right-of-way obstructions (74-71)   

25 Miscellaneous Issues & Complaints   

133 Total Violations/Complaints Handled   

17 Letters sent   

3 Citations issued   

174 Follow Ups   

NOTES: Miscellaneous Issues/ Complaints details   



Page 2 

QUANTITY COMPLAINT   

•  An unusually high number of mowing violations for the month of 
May. This trend continues in June.   

•  

Positive progress on reducing past due rental inspections 
continues in cooperation with PCI. There are a few isolated 
instances of landlord resistance. Those are being addressed. 
Property ownership and contact information is being updated.  
Information about rental status is being shared with city 
accessors. 

  

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 BY: Frank Jesensek  DATE: 6/17/25 

 



Institution Account Description Balance
Interest 

Rate
Flagstar Common Cash (Primary Checking) 634,740.81$         0.43%

Payroll 1,746.49$             0.45%
*Savings 2,906,697.13$      3.40%
**Tax Collection 2,891.96$             N/A
Total 3,546,076.39$      
*Includes proceeds from DDA/Streetscape Bonds
** Includes funds collected on behalf of other governmental agencies

Highpoint Common Cash 48,218.81$           N/A
Drug Enforcement 18,211.94$           N/A
Library PayPal 500.00$  N/A
*Tax Collection -$  N/A
Total 66,930.75$           
* Includes funds collected on behalf of other governmental agencies

Michigan CLASS General Fund (Pooled) 6,586,208.26$      4.3723%
Water & Sewer 605,204.65$         4.3723%
Equipment Fund 307,389.80$         4.3723%
Total 7,498,802.71$      

American Dep Mgmt Co Money Market Account 3,988,068.81$      4.22%
3-Month Certificates of Deposit -$  N/A
6-Month Certificates of Deposit -$  N/A
Total 3,988,068.81$      

Total, All Investments & Deposits 15,099,878.66$    

Institution Balance
% of
Total

Flagstar 3,546,076.39$      23.5%
Highpoint 66,930.75$           0.4%
Michigan CLASS 7,498,802.71$      49.7%
American Dep Mgmt Co 3,988,068.81$      26.4%
Total 15,099,878.66$    

Type of Investment or Deposit Balance
% of
Total

Interest 15,030,055.95$    99.5%
Non-Interest 69,822.71$           0.5%
Total 15,099,878.66$    

City of Hastings
Investments & Deposits Status Report as of May 31, 2025

6/17/2025 Page 1 of 1

12.B



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FUND 101 - GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 06/17/2025     01:16PM

REVENUE

 TAXES 3,621,122.45 3,638,300 100.00% 3,465,070.03 3,463,000 100.00%

 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 43,221.00 32,500 133.00% 27,658.86 43,650 63.00%

 LICENSES & PERMITS 28,770.07 19,250 149.00% 28,299.30 21,175 134.00%

 FEDERAL REVENUES .00 236,216 0.00% 535,133.00 768,199 70.00%

 STATE SHARED REVENUES 1,099,073.84 1,139,391 96.00% 1,084,796.49 1,398,813 78.00%

 INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 948,017.45 923,228 103.00% 407,362.97 868,416 47.00%

 CHARGES FOR SERVICES 595,966.51 668,100 89.00% 25,362.12 615,950 4.00%

 FINES & FORFEITURES 12,895.54 8,500 152.00% 12,616.80 7,000 180.00%

 INTEREST AND RENTALS 351,405.42 335,400 105.00% 411,324.09 209,000 197.00%

 OTHER REVENUE 217,067.26 451,300 48.00% 348,187.34 30,500 1142.00%

 INCOMING TRANSFERS .00 0 0.00% .00 0 0.00%

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 6,917,539.54 7,452,185 93.00% 6,345,811.00 7,425,703 85.00%

EXPENDITURES

 CITY COUNCIL 68,732.67 82,326 83.00% 53,285.87 74,001 72.00%

 MAYOR 13,080.85 14,811 88.00% 14,224.94 14,752 96.00%

 CITY MANAGER 177,283.83 192,810 92.00% 178,105.02 183,080 97.00%

 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 330,962.54 396,945 83.00% 341,159.03 313,745 109.00%

 CLERK 108,243.77 117,396 92.00% 98,408.37 118,397 83.00%

 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 225,354.31 244,000 92.00% 203,350.08 244,000 83.00%

 BOARD OF REVIEW 2,769.02 2,512 110.00% 2,016.04 2,862 70.00%

 TREASURER 77,269.52 83,928 92.00% 70,315.06 78,808 89.00%

 ASSESSOR 136,543.35 171,282 80.00% 131,004.53 162,581 81.00%

 ELECTIONS 31,437.31 56,368 56.00% 30,818.98 64,277 48.00%

 CITY HALL & GROUNDS 119,225.30 158,950 75.00% 148,884.87 187,500 79.00%

 LEGAL AND AUDIT 51,439.00 70,000 73.00% 35,583.00 70,000 51.00%

 OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 841,353.74 588,415 143.00% 277,579.71 753,387 37.00%

 POLICE 1,705,935.40 2,099,689 81.00% 1,713,095.75 2,005,929 85.00%

 CODE COMPLIANCE 41,042.26 50,962 81.00% 33,671.15 50,171 67.00%

 FIRE DEPARTMENT 453,707.75 524,545 86.00% 1,087,825.52 1,057,797 103.00%

 INSPECTIONS 172,675.01 100,000 173.00% 98,306.00 55,000 179.00%

 DEPT OF PUBLIC SERVICE ADMIN 116,660.57 159,240 73.00% 146,186.62 182,683 80.00%

 PARKING LOTS - NON SAD 10,749.90 23,000 47.00% 8,371.14 19,750 42.00%

 PARKING LOTS - SAD 18,628.76 267,500 7.00% 35,873.74 234,000 15.00%

 STREET LIGHTING 101,343.55 99,500 102.00% 88,927.00 102,500 87.00%

 COMMUNITY SERVICES 212,551.82 300,355 71.00% 189,959.59 162,085 117.00%

 BROWNFIELD GRANT .00 0 0.00% .00 0 0.00%

 PLANNING AND ZONING 9,518.01 18,685 51.00% 6,475.68 18,285 35.00%

 JOINT PLANNING & ZONING 37.50 400 9.00% 77.50 550 14.00%

 COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVLOPMNT 134,355.93 143,143 94.00% 115,904.37 141,500 82.00%



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET 31-MAY-24 BUDGET BUDGET

FUND 101 - GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 06/17/2025     01:17PM

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANTS 61,536.50 65,100 95.00% 71,197.00 75,100 95.00%

 CABLE ACCESS 11,902.97 13,776 86.00% 8,462.69 13,457 63.00%

 PARKS AND RECREATION 308,852.09 1,344,325 23.00% 184,991.37 977,657 19.00%

 ARTS AND CULTURAL ACTIVITIES 70,304.21 81,526 86.00% 83,370.20 80,400 104.00%

 OTHER FINANCING USES 549,696.00 549,696 100.00% 356,449.00 316,449 113.00%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 6,163,193.44 8,021,185 77.00% 5,813,879.82 7,760,703 75.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 754,346.10 (       569,000) 531,931.18 (       335,000)



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 06/17/2025     01:19PM

FUND 202 - MAJOR STREETS

REVENUES 769,008.23 1,235,556 62.00% 747,332.77 1,045,218 72.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS 225,000.00 225,000 100.00% .00 0 0.00%

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 994,008.23 1,460,556 68.00% 747,332.77 1,045,218 72.00%

EXPENDITURES 491,776.86 1,593,169 31.00% 452,996.90 1,097,335 41.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS .00 150,000 0.00% 150,000.00 150,000 100.00%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 491,776.86 1,743,169 28.00% 602,996.90 1,247,335 48.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 502,231.37 (       282,613) 144,335.87 (       202,117)

FUND 203 - LOCAL STREETS

REVENUES 307,760.56 373,772 82.00% 296,160.09 351,008 84.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS 150,000.00 300,000 50.00% 300,000.00 300,000 100.00%

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 457,760.56 673,772 68.00% 596,160.09 651,008 92.00%

EXPENDITURES 498,559.12 721,691 69.00% 429,574.89 733,661 59.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 498,559.12 721,691 69.00% 429,574.89 733,661 59.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (            40,798.56) (         47,919) 166,585.20 (         82,653)



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY               92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  06/17/2025     01:20PM

FUND 209 - CEMETERY FUND

REVENUES 235,021.83 273,779 86.00% 246,700.48 244,780 101.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 235,021.83 273,779 86.00% 246,700.48 244,780 101.00%

EXPENDITURES 241,561.72 312,362 77.00% 147,608.29 279,100 53.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 241,561.72 312,362 77.00% 147,608.29 279,100 53.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              6,539.89) (         38,583) 99,092.19 (         34,320)



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY               92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  06/17/2025     01:23PM

FUND 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

REVENUES 1,081,484.14 807,950 134.00% 3,556,357.16 3,463,990 103.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 1,081,484.14 807,950 134.00% 3,556,357.16 3,463,990 103.00%

EXPENDITURES 1,771,230.30 883,391 201.00% 1,964,763.48 3,745,207 52.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 1,771,230.30 883,391 201.00% 1,964,763.48 3,745,207 52.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (          689,746.16) (         75,441) 1,591,593.68 (       281,217)



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 06/17/2025     01:24PM

FUND 265 - DRUG ENFORCEMENT

REVENUES 30.00 2,500 1.00% 911.00 2,800 33.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 30.00 2,500 1.00% 911.00 2,800 33.00%

EXPENDITURES 3,625.00 5,600 65.00% 2,365.00 5,600 42.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 3,625.00 5,600 65.00% 2,365.00 5,600 42.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              3,595.00) (           3,100) (              1,454.00) (           2,800)

FUND 266 - POLICE TRAINING

REVENUES 1,606.55 3,400 47.00% 1,708.48 2,950 58.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 1,606.55 3,400 47.00% 1,708.48 2,950 58.00%

EXPENDITURES 2,872.11 4,900 59.00% 1,857.48 4,600 40.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 2,872.11 4,900 59.00% 1,857.48 4,600 40.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              1,265.56) (           1,500) (                 149.00) (           1,650)



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY               92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  06/17/2025     01:26PM

FUND 271 - LIBRARY FUND

OPERATIONS

OPERATING REVENUES 750,089.58 673,516 111.00% 1,514,907.28 1,373,449 110.00%

OPERATING INCOMING TRANSFERS

TOTAL OPERATING REV & IN TRNSFRS 750,089.58 673,516 111.00% 1,514,907.28 1,373,449 110.00%

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 658,277.89 656,799 100.00% 1,504,932.65 1,708,154 88.00%

OPERATING OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL OPERATING EXP & OUT TRNSFRS 658,277.89 656,799 100.00% 1,504,932.65 1,708,154 88.00%

NET OPERATING REV OVER EXP 91,811.69 16,717 9,974.63 (       334,705)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

CAP IMPRVMNT EXPENDITURES .00 0 0.00% .00 0 0.00%

CAP IMPRVMNT OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL CAP IMPRVMNT EXP & OUT TRNSFRS .00 0 0.00% .00 0 0.00%

NET CAP IMPRVMNT REV OVER EXP .00 0 .00 0



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY               92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  06/17/2025     01:27PM

FUND 592 - WATER & SEWER FUND

REVENUES 4,533,472.89 4,900,690 93.00% 4,166,718.29 4,347,620 96.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 4,533,472.89 4,900,690 93.00% 4,166,718.29 4,347,620 96.00%

EXPENDITURES 3,200,436.56 4,632,941 69.00% 3,045,751.73 4,106,072 74.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS .00 0 0.00% .00 0 0.00%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 3,200,436.56 4,632,941 69.00% 3,045,751.73 4,106,072 74.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 1,333,036.33 267,749 1,120,966.56 241,548



CITY OF HASTINGS

SUMMARY REVENUES  AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING MAY 31, 2025

THIS YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD LAST YEAR REVISED FISCAL YTD

FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF FISCAL YTD BUDGET % OF

31-MAY-25 2024-2025 BUDGET 31-MAY-24 2023-2024 BUDGET

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY               92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  06/17/2025     01:28PM

FUND 661 - EQUIPMENT REVOLVING FUND

REVENUES 657,777.61 908,000 72.00% 667,563.98 939,500 71.00%

INCOMING TRANSFERS

TOTAL REVENUE & INCOMING TRANSFERS 657,777.61 908,000 72.00% 667,563.98 939,500 71.00%

EXPENDITURES 551,387.65 626,963 88.00% 387,645.29 510,592 76.00%

OUTGOING TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OUTGOING TRANSFERS 551,387.65 626,963 88.00% 387,645.29 510,592 76.00%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 106,389.96 281,037 279,918.69 428,908



1 

Hastings City Council 
Memorandum 

Date:      June 19, 2025 
To:   Honorable Mayor Tossava & Members of the Hastings City Council 
From:   Dan King, Community Development Director 
Subject:     June Community Development Department Report 

A summary of the current activities in the Community Development Department includes:  

Meadowstone Apartments 

Construction continues on three of the additional five apartment buildings for Meadowstone 
Apartments on Barfield Drive. Early indications reflect the buildings will be prepared for 
occupancy in October. 

12.C



2 

 
 

Hastings Riverwalk Lofts 
 
CopperRock Construction will be hosting a project celebration at 11:00 AM on Tuesday, July 
1st at 420 E. Mill. This project has been years in the making and has involved many 
stakeholders committed to bringing additional housing options to the City of Hastings. The 
project will include a commercial component that will create additional benefits to residents and 
visitors. 
 

 
. 
 
1000 Enterprise Drive 
 
The property owner, Chad Stora, is in the process of constructing two 60’ x 240 
warehouse/storage facility buildings that will be separated by units to house space for trades 
such as plumbing, mechanical, construction, and other similar entities. 
 

 



3 

 
 
 

Barry County Fair 
 
The 172nd annual Barry County Fair will be held July 14th through July 19th. The City of 
Hastings, in partnership with the Village of Middleville and Thornapple Township, share a 
booth in the Expo Center. Each municipality enlists volunteer support from various boards and 
commissions to occupy the booth, have promotional material available, and answer questions. 
 
The fair booth volunteer signup link has been shared with City boards and commissions. In 
case you missed it, here is the link  2025 Barry county fair sign up 
 
Upcoming Events 
 
Block Party Street Dance July 12 
Barry County Fair July 14-19 
Summerfest August 22-24 
 
If you have any questions, concerns, or ideas please feel free to contact Sandy, Steve, or me 
at sponsetto@hastingsmi.gov shoke@hastingsmi.gov  dking@hastingsmi.gov  
 

 

                                  

https://www.signupgenius.com/go/10C0C44ABA62BA6FCC70-55116893-2025
mailto:sponsetto@hastingsmi.gov
mailto:dking@hastingsmi.gov


To: The City Council 

From: Robet Neil, Street Superintendent 

Subject: May monthly report 

Meeting Date: June 23rd ,2025 

 

 

 

Projects: 

• Lead service asphalt patching
• Misc road repairs
• Fire Hydrant at N. Boltwood and E. Colfax has been replaced and in

working condition
• Hydrant Flushing was completed with a total of 3 hydrants that need to

be replaced.
• 10-Catch basins repaired 2- manholes
• Sidewalk and concrete replacement
• Crack Sealing has begun
• Compost facility is open
• Salt storage building
• Sweeping
• Root cutting program has started and should be finishing  during the

week June 23rd

Rob Neil- Street Superintendent 

12.D



Catch Basin repair and manhole repairs  

 

 

 

 

 

This is just one example of a manhole repair that was needed at the 
intersection of E. Center St. and S. East St. this manhole required a partial 
rebuild of the 5 top rows of block. 

 

 

 

    Rob Neil- Street Superintendent 

 

 



        Hastings DPS crews have been continuing with Lead Service Replacement 
and have been very busy. During the Fall of 2024 crew began with the 
replacement program, between Aug 2024 thru May 2025 approx. 100 services 
have been completed. This project will be continuing long term 

 

 

  

Rob Neil- Street Superintendent 

 

 

Ex. Lead connected 
to copper 

Copper pipe 



 
Shaun Hollars   Bret Miller  Zach Duits  Drew Gleeson 
2016 2017 2017 2022 
 

 
Justin Tibble    Robert Nino   Kodee Thompson 
2023 2023 2024 
 

 
Chuck Tefft   Darin Dawes   Rick Argo JR. 
2015             2009                                          2008 
 

Meet the Employees 



Woodlawn Ave 

 

 

 

Woodlawn Ave Paving was completed on Friday June 13th  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Fish Hatchery Bathroom is progressing with the possible completion August 

 

 

 

 



1 

CITY OF HASTINGS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

May 5, 2025 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chairperson Hatfield with the 
following Commissioners present: Scott Darling, Chelsey Foster, David Hatfield, 
Nichole Lyke, Bill Mattson, Jacquie McLean, Sarah Moyer-Cale, and Dave 
Tossava. Student member Meredith Ansorge was also present.  
Absent: Levi Bolthouse  

Also present: Planning Consultant Rebecca Harvey. 

It was MOVED by McLean and SECONDED by Foster to approve the agenda as 
presented. All members present voting yes; motion carried. 

It was MOVED by Mattson and SECONDED by Foster that the proposed minutes 
of the Regular Meeting of March 3, 2025 be approved with the correction of the 
spelling of Mattson’s name. All members present voting yes; motion carried. 

None. 

Applicant Terry Dennison presented an overview of the request and his vision for 
the museum. Harvey presented her staff report regarding the special land use 
application and noted several areas in which compliance with the ordinance could 
not be determined due to a lack of information. The public comment portion of the 
hearing was opened at 7:09 p.m. No comments were received, and the public 
comment period closed at 7:09 p.m.  

Discussion was held by the commission regarding the merits of the application and 
whether or not there was sufficient documentation to make a decision. 

It was MOVED by Foster and SECONDED by Tossava to approve the special land 
use and site plan for 220 W Colfax contingent upon the applicant’s submittal of a 
revised site plan with complete, required information that conforms to the zoning 
ordinance. 

Voting yes: Foster, Hatfield, Lyke, Mattson, Moyer-Cale, Tossava 
Voting no: Darling, McLean  
Absent: Bolthouse 
Motion Carried.  

Moyer-Cale reported that the JPA held a brief meeting and JPC will meet next 
month. 

No changes to the work task list were noted. 

None noted. 

Call to Order 

Approval of the 
Agenda  

Approval of the 
Minutes  

Informative 
Items: 

Public Hearing: 
SLU for “Off 
Broadway” 
museum at 220 
W Colfax 

New Business: 
PUD plan for 
Bachman Fields, 
900 Bachman Rd 

Old Business 
JPA/JPC Update 

Work Task List 

Tracking Terms 
and Conditions 

Public Comment 

13.A



2 

No public comment was received.  
 
None.  
 
McLean commented that applicants need to submit complete information with their 
requests to be properly reviewed by the Planning Commission and make better 
use of staff resources.  
 
It was MOVED by Mattson and SECONDED by McLean to adjourn the meeting. 
All members present voting yes; motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 
7:38 p.m.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sarah Moyer-Cale, 
Secretary 

 
Staff Comments 
 
Commission 
Comments 
 
 
Adjournment 

 



City of Hastings 
COUNTY OF BARRY, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

Riverside Cemetery Preservation Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
June 11, 2025 

1. Call to Order: Meeting started at the Memorial Space in Riverside Cemetery at 3pm.
Then reconvened at City Hall at 3:50pm

2. Roll Call: Present; Buehl, Coleman, Tossava.  Joined at City Hall Perin.  Absent; Watson,
Gettys, and Neil

3. Pledge of Allegiance.

4. Approval of the Agenda.

Motion by Tossava and supported by Coleman to approve the Agenda for the Riverside 
Cemetery Preservation Advisory Board for June 11, 2025.  All ayes, motion carried. 

5. Approval of the Minutes of the meeting of May 14, 2025.

Motion by Tossava and supported by Coleman to approve the minutes from May 14,
2025, of the Riverside Cemetery Preservation Advisory Board meeting.  All ayes, motion
carried.

6. Public comment and communications.

None

7. Sexton Update

Josh was present to give the update.  All recent storm debris has been cleaned up.
Foundation repairs are in progress.

8. Unfinished Business.

A. Discuss the Memorial Space possible Flagpole.

Discussion was held and Josh will provide a quote for the work and materials to
install a flagpole on the east side of the memorial space.

13.B



 
B. Discuss the Memorial Space Phase II 

 
Discussion to move talks of Phase II to later in the summer. 

 
C. Chapel progress. 

 
Work is to be completed next week on the chapel, and we will have a progress 
report for the next meeting. 

 
D. Fence replacement progress. 

 
Discussion was held and Josh will also provide a quote on labor and materials to fix 
and replace with a cable type fence. 

 
E. Location of the proposed new burial sections. 

 
Josh made an estimation of being able to clear space for 200 plots just North of the 
memorial space and 800 plots just west of the memorial space.  100 cremains plots 
can be added to the at the intersection of W State Rd and Country Club Dr.  Josh 
will provide a quote to be given to the City Manager and City Council for approval. 

 
 
9. New Business 
 

A. Barry Community Foundation (BCF) Funds Report for May 2025. 
 
B. City Cemetery Fund FY 24-25 Revenues and Expenditures through May 2025. 
 

Motion by Coleman and supported by Tossava to accept the financial reports as 
presented.  All ayes, motion carried. 

 
C. Discuss going to quarterly meetings. 

 
Discussed setting the next meeting date at each meeting giving the option to skip 
months when there is little to be put on the agenda. 

 
10. Board member comments. 
 
 

  Positive comments were made on the productive meeting. 
 

 



 
11. Public Comment. 
 
 None 
 
12. Adjourn: 
 

Motion by Tossava and supported by Perin to adjourn meeting at 4:35 PM.  Next 
meeting will be July 9, 2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Guidelines for Public Comment 
 

Public Comment is welcomed and appreciated.  Please follow these simple guidelines to ensure all have 
an opportunity to be heard. 
 
All comments and questions will be made through the chair.  All comments will be made in a courteous 
and civil manner; profanity and personal attacks will not be tolerated.  Please limit the length of your 
comments to 3 minutes. If you are a member of a group, please appoint a spokesperson to speak on 
behalf of the group (those speaking on behalf of a group may be provided additional time).  Please 
state your name before offering comment. 

 


	June 23, 2025 Council Packet
	0_Exec Summary 2025 06 23
	4_Agenda 2025 06 23
	5_Minutes 2025 06 09
	9.A_Acting Manager Appointment
	10.A_Fee Schedule
	10.B_FY24-25 Budget Amendment
	10.C_Resolution 2025-19 right of first refusal memo
	10.D_MEI Easement
	10.E_Back to School Bash 2025
	10.F_Agreement in Principle memo
	10.G_Salt Storage Memo and Packet
	10.H_DO probe memo
	11.A_sidewalk and cafe ordinances update memo
	11.B_paid parental leave policy draft memo
	12.A_May 2025 Council Report Chief of Police
	12.A2_May 2025 CCO Monthly Report

	12.B_05-31-25 Financial Statements
	12.C_06.23 CD Report
	12.D_May 2025 monthly report
	13.A_planning 05_05_2025
	13.B_Cemetery Minutes 06 11 2025


